
 
 

 AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT STRATEGY & OUTCOMES COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 6, 2024 @ 1:00 PM 
ADMIN FOURTH FLOOR TRAINING SPACE 

DAVID W. ALBRECHT ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
112 OTTER AVENUE OSHKOSH, WI 

 
To view this meeting via Zoom, please use this link: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89150652487?pwd=YVhUNDR3ZmQyNkxjRnpRVFV1YkttZz09  
 

Meeting ID: 891 5065 2487  Passcode: ARPA030624 
Via telephone: (312) 626 6799 

 
A Regular Business Meeting of the ARPA Strategy and Outcomes Commission will be held on 
Wednesday, March 6, 2024, at 1:00 PM in the Admin Fourth Floor Training Space of the David W. 
Albrecht Administration Building, 112 Otter Avenue Oshkosh, Wisconsin. 
 
At this meeting, the following will be presented to the Commission for its consideration: 
  

A. Call to Order  

B. Public Comments  

C. Approval of Minutes  

 1. February 15, 2024 Meeting Minutes 

D. Business Items  

 1. Update: Amount of Resources Available in Each Spirit Fund Category 

 2. Discussion: Investment in Emergency Traffic Barriers 

 3. Investing Spirt Fund Dollars from the Government Identified Community Projects Category in 
Child Care 

 
• 

Resolution: Approving $500,000 from the Spirit Fund's Government Identified Community 
Projects Category to Expand the Childcare Space and Program Offerings at the Oshkosh 
YMCA 

 

• 

Resolution 333-022024: Approving $350,000 from the Spirit Fund's Government 
Identified Community Projects Category for Child Care Resource and Referral To 
Support Child Care Providers with Training and Mentoring and In Turn Provide Increased 
Available Child Care Openings in Winnebago County 

 • Presentation: Childcare Incubator Program 

Page 1 of 101

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89150652487?pwd=YVhUNDR3ZmQyNkxjRnpRVFV1YkttZz09


 4. Resolution:  Approving $_______ from the Spirit Fund's Government Identified Community 
Projects Category for First 5 Fox Valley To Promote Cross-Sector Collaboration and Build an 
Efficient, Effective, and Equitable Family Support System (Request $300,000) 

 5. Discussion/Possible Action:  Request from the Spirit Fund's Government Identified Community 
Projects Category for Property Expansion or Programming at the YMCA of the Fox Cities  

 6. Presentation: Proposed Allocations of the County Government Projects 

 • Resolution: Approval of $300,000 in Spirit Funds for Comprehensive Space Needs 
Assessment and Facility Master Plan from the County Government Projects Category  

 • Resolution: Allocation of $3,900,000 in Spirit Funds from County Government Projects 
Category to Improve Outdoor Recreation in Winnebago County 

E. Next Meeting Date  

 1. Set next meeting date, time, and location.   

F. Adjourn  
 

**This meeting is also being posted as a committee meeting for: 
• Park View Health Center Committee 

• Highway Committee 
• Winnebago County Board of Supervisors 

 
Upon request, provisions will be made for people with disabilities upon 24 hours prior notice to the Office 

of the County Clerk. Phone Number: 920-232-3430 
 

Page 2 of 101



 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

ARPA Strategy and Outcomes 

Commission Minutes 

 

DATE: Thursday, February 15, 2024 

 

TIME: 1:00 p.m. 

 

PLACE: David W. Albrecht Administration Building 

 112 Otter Avenue 

 Oshkosh WI  54901 

 Susan T. Ertmer Conference Room 120 

   

PRESENT: Co-Chair Tom Egan, County Board Chairman 

 Co-Chair Jon Doemel, County Executive 

Morris Cox, Personnel and Finance Chair 

Chuck Farrey, County Board Vice-chair  

Tom Borchart, County Board Member  

Andy Buck, County Board Member                                  

Tom Belter, Public Member  

Tim Galloway, Public Member  

Paul Kaiser, Director of Finance (non-voting member)   

 

ABSENT:       Beth Oswald, Public Member 

 

ALSO PRESENT: Cassie Smith-Gregor, Deputy County Clerk via ZOOM 

 Catherine Scherer, Corporation Counsel  Supervisor Conley Hanson 

 Mary Anne Mueller, Corporation Counsel Adam Breest, Parks Director 

 Victoria Kinderman, Corporation Counsel   Alana Erickson, Public Health 

 Adam BellCorelli  Deb Martin 

 Sheriff John Matz  Deondria Ward 

 Lara Vendola, Sheriff's Office  Beth Clay 

 Doug Gieryn, Public Health Director   Wendy Harris 

 Supervisor Shanah Zastera  Robert Keller 

 Barb Tengesdal   Ellen Skerke 

 Scott Sawinski, Jake's Network of Hope  Sandy Drexler 

 Dan Kesselmayer, USI Fiber   Beth G. 

   Alona Boots  

  

    

1. Call to Order  

Co-Chair Jon Doemel called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 

 

Co-Chair Jon Doemel reported that Beth Oswald is excused from today's meeting.     

 

2. Public Comments  

 Dan Kesselmayer, owner of USI Fiber, spoke to the commission regarding their product.  They deliver fiber to 

residents and businesses who want a high-speed reliable internet.  He stated they have worked with the Village of 

Winneconne last year to connect 14 of their buildings around the village and is working with the City of Omro right 

now to connect 19 assets around their city.  Mr. Kesselmayer spoke with the police chief in Omro, and he had asked 

him if there was a possibility of getting a fiber back into the Winnebago County network.  Mr. Kesselmayer provided 

information to the commission in the event the commission wanted to utilize any Spirit Funds for fiber services from 

his organization.   He thanked the commission for their time and consideration.   

  Scott Sawinski, Executive Director of Jake's Network of Hope, spoke today in support of his organization.  They 

are a diaper bank and carry period and adult incontinence supplies.  They provide these much-needed items to 

residents here in Winnebago county.   Mr. Sawinski came today to see if there was any Spirit Funds available to help 

his organization help the residents of Winnebago County.   The price of product is going up but the need is not going 

down.  He thanked the commission for their time and consideration.   
Page 3 of 101



Barb Tengesdal, First 5 Fox Valley (F5FV), voiced her appreciation to the commission for considering Spirit Funds 

for their  

project.  Ms. Tengesdal briefly highlighted some of the services First 5 Fox Valley provides.  She stated she was there 

to answer any questions that the commission may have.  Ms. Tengesdal thanked the commission for their time.   

Shanah Zastera, Winnebago County Board Supervisor and a resident of the Town of Nekimi informed the 

commission about resources available in Winnebago County.  She passed a Senior Resource Directory, Health 

& Wellness Book around for the members to view.  Ms. Zastera hoped the commission is looking at these 

projects closely so they aren't duplicating any services as they decide on funding.  She spoke in support for 

agenda item #8, the Tri-County Dental Clinic.  Ms. Zastera commented on her concern for the childcare 

providers.   

County Board Supervisor Conley Hanson voiced his concerns regarding fiduciary responsibility to the county.  Mr. 

Hanson  

stated the original intent of the ARPA funds was to replace lost revenue to the county.  He also commented on agenda 

item #8 and #9, those projects have partnerships with other counties and would like to know what those other counties 

are contributing towards these organizations.   

Sandy Drexler, Executive Director for Tri-County Dental thanked the commission for considering their project 

request.  She discussed the services they provide, how important the need for dental care is for the population that they 

serve, and what this project request all entailed.  They are working hard to provide care to the people and to the kids 

who are in our community that qualify or need dental care.  Ms. Drexler thanked the commission for their time and 

consideration.        

 

3. Approval of January 31, 2024, meeting minutes. 

Motion by Farrey, seconded by Cox, to approve the January 31, 2024, meeting minutes. CARRIED BY VOICE 

VOTE. 

 

4. Update/Discussion: Status of Funding for Airboats Housed at Winneconne Poygan Fire Department, 

Oshkosh Fire Department and Neenah/Menasha Fire Departments  

 Sheriff John Matz updated the commission on the status of funding for the new airboats for the current 

ones that are housed at Winneconne Poygan Fire Department, Oshkosh Fire Department and the 

Neenah/Menasha Fire Department.  The Sheriff's Office has put the Request for Purchase (RFP) in for the 

three boats and are waiting for a response.  It is due March 8, and they will know then what the exact cost is.  

Sheriff Matz is hopeful that the House will pass the budget when they come back in session and then the 

Sheriff's Office will be able to move forward with the direct congressional funding for the three boats.  Sheriff 

Matz stated they will be fine this year with the boats they currently have.  He hopes that once the RFP comes 

back, it is almost the same time that they would receive the funding from Congress, if passed, and then they 

could order the boats.  Sheriff Matz didn’t know the exact Bill number, but it is the Direct Congressional 

Spending Bill.   

 County Executive Doemel reiterated that the Sheriff stated they are good for this year and that they have 

time to wait and see what happens.  If the Direct Congressional Spending Bill is not passed, County Executive 

Doemel and Sheriff Matz would most likely discuss a backup plan.  Since the Sheriff would be owning these 

boats, the funds would come out of that Administrative 50%, County Government Projects category/bucket.   

 

5. Update/Discussion: Status of where Municipalities stand regarding the $145,000 Spirit Funds distribution.       

Finance Director Paul Kaiser gave an update on the status of the $145,000 Spirit Funds distribution for all 

the municipalities. Mr. Kaiser stated all municipalities have received their $145,000 except for the Town of 

Wolf River and Town of Vinland.  The Town of Vinland received $37,000 that they had put in for.  They are 

also going to let him know what other road projects they are going to be doing.   

Supervisor Farrey attended the Town of Vinland's Town Board meeting and explained to the commission  

their position regarding these Spirit Funds.  The Town has approved an addition to the fire department to have 

more trucks.  Mr. Farrey believes that is probably where the Town of Vinland would apply those funds.  

Supervisor Farrey mentioned there will still be a time commitment there so even if this commission decided to 

approve a project, the Town would still need to bid it out and go through that process.  If there are some time 

constraints/deadlines, the Town would need to be aware of that.  Mr. Farrey believes that the Town is looking 

at several months before a decision will be made.    

Mr. Kaiser clarified the deadline for spending the money.  He stated the Town could put in for an advance 

which was the whole purpose of this $145,000 distribution of Spirit Funds to the municipalities.  Then they 

could spend it on what they wanted to; but then the follow up was to make sure how it was spent within 5 years 

of receiving the funds.   

   Mr. Kaiser also confirmed that the Town of Nekimi has received their funds.   
Page 4 of 101



 

6. Update/Discussion: Review of interest earned on the Spirit Funds.    

Finance Director Paul Kaiser put together a spreadsheet based on Supervisor Farrey's earlier request.  Mr.  

Kaiser split the interest between the County Government Projects versus the Government Identified Community 

Projects.  That interest is based on what funds have been spent versus what funds have not been spent so that is 

what was being shown on the handout he provided to the members prior to the meeting.  There was not a lot of 

difference between the two.  It is about a million dollars of interest for the Government Identified Community 

Projects and about $993,000 for the County Government Projects.  Those figures will change as more money 

starts coming out; as more things have been authorized through the ARPA Strategy and Outcomes Commission; 

and finally, as more monies are being approved by the board to spend from the ARPA Commission.  As of right 

now, the county has actually spent 6.3 million out of the 33.3 million that was received.  A lot of it has been 

approved but it hasn’t been spent yet.   

Tom Belter brought up the Land & Water Conservation Project that was previously approved for  

$3,030,300 for a project which spreads out over a long timeline.  Mr. Belter questioned and wondered, since 

that project was approved, that would be their money, so shouldn’t that projects money be earning its own 

interests segregated from the big chunk of interest.  That would turn out to be about $150,000 a year.     

Mr. Kaiser's opinion is interest rates are going down and they're going to continue to go down, probably  

drastically in the next year or two.  It is going to be up to the commission and the board but Mr. Kaiser feels 

that the county needs to look at where their unassigned general fund is.  He will know more after they are done 

with this year's audit.  Mr. Kaiser would like to hold off on spending the interest until he knows where they are 

at with their unassigned general fund for our county health going forward.   

  

7. Discussion/Action: Resolution – Approving $75,000 from the Spirit Fund's Government Identified 

Community Projects Category to NEW Mental Health Connection to Implement Innovative Features 

in the Service Directory and Update Technology and Website Content (Request $90,000) 

Motion by Cox, seconded by Farrey, to adopt the request to Implement Innovative Features in the Service 

Directory and Update Technology and Website Content at an amount of $75,000.    

Vote on the resolution.  CARRIED BY VOICE VOTE.   

 

Supervisor Cox requested the remainder of the resolutions have a roll call vote.   

 

8. Discussion/Action: Resolution – Approving $403,625 from the Spirit Fund's Government Identified  

Community Projects Category for the Tri-County Dental Clinic, Inc. to Purchase Equipment to 

Provide Better Dental Care to Those People in Need (Request $403,625) 

 Motion by Farrey, seconded by Cox, to adopt the request for the Tri-County Dental Clinic, Inc. to  

Purchase Equipment to Provide Better Dental Care to Those People in Need.   

Vote on resolution:  AYES:  8; NAYES: 0; ABSTAIN:  0; ABSENT:  1 – Oswald.  PASSED. 

 

9. Discussion/Action: Resolution – Approving $350,000 from the Spirit Fund's Government Identified  

Community Projects Category for Child Care Resource and Referral to Support Child Care 

Providers with Training and Mentoring and In Turn Provide Increased Available Child Care 

Openings in Winnebago County (Request $450,000) 

  Motion by Buck, seconded by Belter, to adopt the request for Child Care Resource and Referral to  

Support Child Care Providers with Training and Mentoring and In Turn Provide Increased Available Child 

Care Openings in Winnebago County.   

Vote on resolution:  AYES:  8; NAYES: 0; ABSTAIN:  0; ABSENT:  1 – Oswald.  PASSED. 

 

10. Discussion/Action: Resolution – Approving $50,000 from the Spirit Fund's Government Identified  

Community Projects Category for Pillars, Inc. Ascend Program (Request $50,000) 

Motion by Farrey, seconded by Cox, to adopt the request for Pillars, Inc. Ascend Program.    

Vote on resolution:  AYES:  8; NAYES: 0; ABSTAIN:  0; ABSENT:  1 – Oswald.  PASSED. 

 

11. Discussion/Possible Action: Continue process prioritizing, selection, and determining funding 

amounts for projects for Spirit Funding with the remaining amount to allocate.   

County Executive Doemel asked Adam BellCorelli what the remaining balance would be after this portion is 

presented and hopefully passed by the county board.  Mr. BellCorelli stated today's resolutions total $878,625.  

The figure that he had come up with for the remaining balance was $2,269,118 for the Government Identified 

Community Projects Category.    

County Executive Doemel stated he believed it was this commissions will to get the rest of this Government 
Page 5 of 101



Identified Community Projects Category wrapped up by the next meeting in March. Mr. Doemel mentioned the 

commission still needs to address both of the YMCA Spirit Fund requests, and the First 5 Fox Valley which was 

tabled until the March meeting.   

Supervisor Farrey figured there's roughly about $900,000 left plus the interest to allocate.     

 

12. Discussion of a housing fund for the remaining Government Identified Community Projects Category 

50% 

o Veteran Housing 

  County Executive Doemel would like to see the commission try to find money to do a veteran  

housing piece in Winnebago County.  Jeffery Bucholz, Veterans Service Director, doesn’t have the 

capacity to run a veteran housing piece but there are organizations out there that will.  If you look at 

Veteran Village up at Outagamie County, that is not run by the government, that is run by separate 

organizations.  There are organizations in Winnebago County that would partner with the county to 

run a facility if the county could find a match for us to build it.  Mr. Bucholz's list of veterans that 

need housing is always a long list.  The Day-by-Day Shelter mentioned to the County Board that 

there were four veterans that were staying at the homeless shelter.  Mr. Bucholtz's envision is to 

work with the state for a project that would do a transitional housing piece.  They want to be able to 

partner with the state who is looking to build a new facility for veteran housing transitional housing 

in the state of Wisconsin.  Mr. Doemel would like to see if there is money left over that the 

commission could commit a chunk to that.  It would not necessarily be the counties building but it 

would be a partnership with either the state or with the service organization within Winnebago 

County.  Mr. Doemel asked the commission members for their thoughts.  Mr. Doemel would like 

something that he can go to the state and say they have a match, and they want to further these talks 

and figure this out and find a service organization.   

 

o Housing Resource Exchange  

  County Executive Doemel stated they've been talking to government officials, private sector 

builders, contractors, housing authority and others.  They've had a few meetings to figure out what 

the hold up is in Winnebago County.  One of the things that he had heard is builders are frustrated 

because they don’t really understand how to go about permitting.  It's different in every city, 

municipality, and some places want to, some places don’t.   So, the question becomes can we create 

a housing exchange in Winnebago County through the GIS and Planning and Zoning Department.   

Can they have a resource out there for builders, for contractors, basically a one stop shot to let them 

know what permits they need, what are the setbacks, and what is the retention issues that they might 

fall into.     

   Supervisor Farrey stated that Winnebago County has one of the best GIS systems giving this 

information in the state so all that information is available.  A contractor that wants to know 

something about permits, processes, or procedures could contact the county and get all those 

answers. 

 County Executive Doemel stated we keep getting all these people here, and there is no place to 

house them.  The question becomes how do we help those that are trying to be in this industry and 

what is the resource they really need to really get them going.  Mr. Doemel asked the commission if 

they could entertain whatever funds are left in this Government Identified Community Projects to 

go toward housing, a majority of it for a veteran project and maybe something else, whatever Lu 

Scheer wants to ask us for and would the commission consider that.    

 

13. Discussion on developing a plan for the County Government Projects Category - Administrative 50% 

County Executive Doemel stated they have been taking this slow and taking this slow for a reason.  

They have a lot of challenges ahead of them.  The facility condition assessment showed them that the county built 

a lot of things at the same time.  We're in a lot of buildings and there is a lot of choices to make.  Everything needs 

to be maintained when there is that much square footage.    

Mike Elder has been asked to prepare a master plan study space use for the next commission meeting.  This  

will identify where are we; are we effectively using all the space we have; are we not effectively using all the 

space we have, and does it make sense where things are where they are.   

Mr. Doemel would really like to buy time for Mike Elder, Paul Kaiser, Mike Collard and whoever the  

next Director of Administration is, to really come up with a long-term plan on how we can get over these bubbles.  

The roof and the boilers at both Parkview and the Sheriff's department need to be replaced at the same time.  Those 

are both very big projects.  We really need to figure out how to navigate this the best way to make sure that we're 

doing this in the most economical way.  Mr. Doemel asked the commission to give them time to really develop a 
Page 6 of 101



lot of that.  They are prepared to come forward with the Master Plan Study and the Outdoor Recreation Spirit 

request.   

Supervisor Buck appreciates the sentiment of being patient and taking it slow and getting our ducks in  

a row.  He stated the Parks Department Plan is done, if the commission would go and decide let's wait for 6 or 9 

months, to pass that, that’s just going to increase the cost to do that so his question is why wait for that.  It's done.  

Let's bring it forward, let's vote it up or down and be done with it and get that moving forward so we can get those 

contractors in place and it's going to be cheaper at the end of the day.  We know we want to do it so why are we 

going to wait for it.   

 

14. Set next meeting date and time.   

The next meeting will be Thursday, February 15, 2024, at 1:00 p.m. at the David W. Albrecht 

Administration Building in the Admin Fourth Floor Training Room.     

 

15.   Adjournment. 

Motion made by Supervisor Cox, seconded by Belter, to adjourn at 3:08 p.m. MOTION CARRIES. 

 

Submitted by: 

Cassie Smith-Gregor 

Winnebago County Deputy Clerk  

 

 

 

Page 7 of 101



 

Agenda Item Report  
 

 
 
DATE: March 6, 2024 
FROM: Office of the County Executive 
RE: Update: Amount of Resources Available in Each Spirit Fund Category 
 
General Description: 
This item will be a presentation and discussion on the resources available in each 
category. County administration will discuss planning documents previously passed by 
the commission.  
 
Action Requested: 
No action is required as this is a discussion item.  
 
Procedural Steps: 
The commission will consider action items related to this presentation at this meeting 
and future meetings. This is a review of past actions.  
 
Background: 
Early in the ARPA Commission meetings, a planning document has been used to guide 
funding. In an item during this meeting, county administration will discuss plans for the 
county projects category.  
 
The county board, through the enacting resolution of the Spirit Fund, directed this 
commission to submit projects in two categories. A third category requested by the 
commission was removed by the county board. Those categories were County 
Government Projects and Government Identified Community Projects. Each category 
had half of the Spirit Fund or $16,695,000.  
 
Under the County Government Projects Category, there have been six commission and 
county board approved resolutions totaling $3,784,600: Digital Rooms, Facilities 
Condition Assessment, Strategic Planning, Radios, Boat Launch Pay Stations, Jail 
Workstation Renovations. The agenda has two resolutions totaling $4,200,000. 
Assuming all the resolutions pass $8,710,400 remains available to allocate.  
 
Under the Government Identified Community Projects Categories, the commission has 
recommended twenty-one resolutions to the county board with seventeen passing the 
county board, one pending, one referred back to the commission, and two failing the 
county board. Assuming the pending board resolution passes, $14,433,925 has been 
allocated. Items on the agenda total $1,650,000. Assuming all of the resolutions pass 
the county board, $611,075 would remain in the Government Identified Community 
Projects.  

Page 8 of 101



 
Total interest accrued to date is $2,250,000. At a future meeting, the commission could 
recommend how to allocate that amount.  
 
Policy Discussion: 
As it relates to the Government Identified Community Projects, all projects which were 
received during the survey period last summer will have been disposed of following this 
meeting.  
 
When the commission initially passed the planning document in May of 2023, 
$1,000,000 was included for Veteran Housing. Additionally, the commission was 
planning to allocate funds to housing initiatives. During this agenda item, the 
commission should discuss and provide direction on how the remain dollars should be 
allocated.  
 
Additionally, under this agenda item, it would be appropriate to provide guidance on 
proposals the commission would like to see as it relates to the $2,250,000 in interest.  
 
Attachments: 
1. Update on Allocations 
 
 

Page 9 of 101



$16,695,000 $12,910,400 
Approved 

by Board
$3,7846,00

Project Name
Planned Allocation

Amount Spent Remaining

Digital Rooms $ 150,000
$                     

$ 150,000

Facilities 

Condition 
$ 300,000 $ 275,000 $ 25,000

Strategic 

Planning
$ 175,000 $ 105,000 $ 70,000

Radios $ 2,725,000 $ 2,208,842 $ 516,158

Outdoor 

Recreation
$ 120,000 $ 13,736 $ 106,264

Sheriff DS 

Workstation 
$ 314,600 $ 3,795 $ 310,805

Unallocated $ 12,910,400
$                 

-

Winnebago County Spirit Fund Allocations Planning Document
Prior to County Board approval, projects may be added or take-off by the ARPA Strategy and Outcomes Commission

Last updated:                   

2/27/2024

Amount Allocated by

County Government Projects

Initial Allocation 

of 50%       
$3,784,600 

Amount 

Spent
$ 2,606,373

Amount 

Allocated by 

ARPA 

Commission

Project 

Number
Description

Board Approved 

Allocation

232-052023 6006
Audio and visual upgrades to meetings rooms to allow for better virtual 

meeting space.
$ 150,000

172-012023 6003 Review the conditions of the over 100 county owned facilities to outline our 

potential deferred maintenance.
$ 300,000

168-012023 6000
Outline roals, goals, and responsibility of County Government. Purchase a 

priority based budgeting tool which will help us measure outcomes and 
$ 175,000

169-012023 6001 Replacement of Motorola Radios for numerous county departments $ 2,725,000

174-012023 6007 Projects for the parks department to improve trails, parks, and Sunnyview -  

Boat Launch Pay Stations.
$ 120,000

284-112023 6008 Remove existing stations from Direct Supervision One and Direct Supervision 

Two and combine the officer's area in existing Program rooms.
$ 314,600

Not allocated based on board action in March



$16,695,000 $1,493,618 

Amount 

Approved 

by Board

14,366,425.00$ 

Project Name

Planned Allocation

Amount Spent

Amount Remaining

Land & Water 

Conservation $ 3,030,300 $ 6,449 $ 3,023,851

Expo Center 

Resiliency $ 925,000 $ 97,745 $ 827,255

Fire Chief 

Association $ 2,100,000 $ 2,100,000

Christine Anne 

Center $ 500,000 $ 500,000

$                 

-

St. Vincent De 

Paul, Neenah $ 500,000 $ 500,000

Funding to 

Local $ 3,045,000 $ 2,610,000 $ 435,000

Omro 

Community $ 250,000 $ 250,000

$                 

-

Boys & Girls 

Club Oshkosh $ 500,000

Greater Fox 

Valley Habitat $ 500,000

Solutions 

Recovery $ 500,000 $ 500,000

Government Identified 

Projects

Initial Allocation 

of 50%       
$15,201,382 Amount Spent $ 3,464,194

Resolution

Project 

Number
Description

Board Approved 

Allocation

Amount 

Allocated by 

ARPA 

Commission

202-032023 6005 Efforts to improve soil and water health in the county
$ 3,030,300

170-012023 6002
Projecs to improve Sunnyview's ability to be used in an an emergency 

response $ 925,000

281-112023 6010 Radios for area fire departments.
$ 2,100,000

282-112023 6011 Christine Anne Center
$ 500,000

283-112023 6012 St. Vincent de Paul, Neenah
$ 500,000

203-032023 6004 Funding to ensure a Spirit Fund project in every corner of the county
$ 3,045,000

275-102023 6009 Omro Area Community Center
$ 250,000

311-012024 B&G Club Oshkosh Community Center Expansion
$ 500,000

312-012024
Greater Fox Cities Area Habitat for humanity to help build or rehab 10 

homes $ 500,000

314-012024 Solutions Recovery ADA entrance and remodel
$ 500,000



Project Name

Planned Allocation

Amount Spent

Amount Remaining

NOVA 

Counseling $ 500,000

Water & Sewer 

Lines City of $ 343,000

NEW Mental 

Health $ 75,000

Tri-County 

Community $ 403,625

Pillars
$ 50,000

Neenah 

Menasha Fire $ 500,000

Village of 

Winneconne $ 324,500

Child Care 

Resource and $ 350,000

City of 

Menasha $ 184,957

City of Neenah 

Traffic $ 300,000

Fund South 

Leg $ 387,500

313-012024 NOVA Counseling Services Facility to Expand Building
$ 500,000

330-022024 Update Water & Sewer Lines Under the Fox River in the City of Omro
$ 343,000

Resolution

Project 

Number
Description

Board Approved 

Allocation

331-022024
NEW Mental Health Connection to Implement Innovative Features in Service 

Directory & Update Technology $ 7,500

332-022024 Tri-County Community Dental Clinic, Inc.
$ 403,625

334-022024 Pillars, Inc
$ 50,000

337-022024
Build an Emergency Service Training Facility for the Neenah/Menasha Fire 

Department $ 500,000

338-02024 Park Upgrades
$ 324,500

333-022024
Child Care Resource and Referral to Support Child Care Providers with 

Training and Mentoring

Sent Back 

to ARPA 

335-022024 Purchase Mobile Traffic Barriers for the City of Menasha
Failed 

County 

336-022024 Purchase Mobile Traffic Barriers for the City of Neenah
Failed 

County 

314-032024
Fund South Leg of a 2-Lane Roundabout at the Intersection of Leonard Point 

Road and State Hwy 21 387,500

Estimated Total Spirit Fund Interest $2,250,000



 

Agenda Item Report  
 

 
 
DATE: March 6, 2024 
FROM: Office of the County Executive 
RE: Discussion: Investment in Emergency Traffic Barriers 
 
General Description: 
Discussion for the commission after two failed resolutions granting resources for the 
purchase of traffic barriers.  
 
Action Requested: 
No action is needed as this is a discussion item. Staff will prepare an item for the next 
meeting as necessary based on commission discussion.  
 
Procedural Steps: 
The commission will need to request an action item for a future agenda if so desired.  
 
Background: 
During the Government Identified Community Projects survey last summer, the cities of 
Neenah and Menasha submitted projects for traffic barriers. These barriers are 
temporary and easily deployed for special events when the closing of streets or 
protection of event attendees is necessary.  
 
The commission recommended $184,957 for the city of Menasha and $300,000 for the 
city of Neenah. Both resolutions failed the county board due to not receiving the state 
statute required two-thirds vote.  
 
Negative points made by the county board included (1) this expense was not in the 
spirit of the ARPA legislation, (2) the cities should use their own funds and budget for 
these projects which could include revenue from events during deployment, (3) large 
vehicles including plow trucks could be used for the same purpose. Whether these 
arguments are valid is up to the commission.  
 
Some board supervisors suggested that the county own and lend traffic barriers for use. 
Occasionally, the county does own assets that are housed with other local governments 
and partner organizations.  
 
Policy Discussion: 
Typically, under board and parliamentary rules, an item which fails cannot be brought 
back in the same term. The exception being a motion to reconsider at the same or next 
succeeding business meeting (board rule 12.7). Under long-standing Attorney General 
guidance, a motion to reconsider complies with the open meetings law. A motion to 

Page 12 of 101



reconsider would have to be made by a county board supervisor who voted on the 
prevailing side.  
 
Additionally, the commission in the next county board term could bring the grants back 
to the next county board to be elected in April.  
 
Another option is that the commission could request a future agenda item which 
explores the county owning and deploying the traffic barriers.  
 
The purpose of this item is for the commission to discuss how you would like to proceed 
with the failed resolutions.  
 
Attachments: 
None 
 
 

Page 13 of 101



 

Agenda Item Report  
 

 
 
DATE: March 6, 2024 
FROM: Office of the County Executive 
RE: Resolution: Approving $500,000 from the Spirit Fund's Government Identified 

Community Projects Category to Expand the Childcare Space and Program 
Offerings at the Oshkosh YMCA 

 
General Description: 
After a request from the Oshkosh YMCA for more time to review, this item is back 
before the commission for approval.  
 
Action Requested: 
Motion to recommend the county board pass a resolution to grant $500,000 to the 
Oshkosh YMCA for child care facilities expansion.  
 
Procedural Steps: 
Committee of 
Jurisdiction: 

ARPA Strategy & 
Outcomes 

Meeting 
Date: March 6, 2024 

    
Action taken: __________ Vote: __________ 
    

County Board: __________ Meeting 
Date: __________ 

 
Background: 
The Oshkosh YMCA submitted an on-time application during the survey period. Later, 
the YMCA wanted to review a different project in Omro. After review, their original 
project in the city of Oshkosh is more financially feasible.  
 
The original completed application is included in the packet for the commission's 
review. As is the resolution.  
 
Policy Discussion: 
The Oshkosh YMCA reports that 40-50 children will be served under the project. Those 
children come from the Oshkosh area, and including Omro and Winneconne.  
 
The commission needs to make a motion to advance the resolution to county board.  
 
The commission has recognized Government Identified Community Projects that 
support or enhance county services:  

Page 14 of 101



1. Oshkosh YMCA increases the number of available placements in a safe, fun, 
educational childcare setting that allows children in the Oshkosh community to 
grow up healthier and more connected to one another. The YMCA childcare 
programs complement work being done in the Winnebago County Health 
Department, Human Services, and Parks Department. 

2. Oshkosh YMCA childcare programs are an essential piece of the economic 
puzzle in Winnebago County. These spirit funds requested help to ensure more 
families have the childcare they need to remain in Winnebago County and 
demonstrate broad support for this important program expansion. 

  
 
Attachments: 
1. Oshkosh Community YMCA Winnebago County Spirit Fund Opportunities 

Application and Attachments 
2. DRAFT RESOLUTION - Oshkosh YMCA 
 
 

Page 15 of 101



Page 16 of 101



Page 17 of 101



Page 18 of 101



Page 19 of 101



Page 20 of 101



Page 21 of 101



Page 22 of 101



Page 23 of 101



Page 24 of 101



Page 25 of 101



Page 26 of 101



Page 27 of 101



Page 28 of 101



Page 29 of 101



Page 30 of 101



Page 31 of 101



Page 32 of 101



Page 33 of 101



Page 34 of 101



Page 35 of 101



Page 36 of 101



Page 37 of 101



Page 38 of 101



Page 39 of 101



Page 40 of 101



Page 41 of 101



Page 42 of 101



Page 43 of 101



Page 44 of 101



Page 45 of 101



Page 46 of 101



Page 47 of 101



Page 48 of 101



Page 49 of 101



Page 50 of 101



Page 51 of 101



Page 52 of 101



Page 53 of 101



Page 54 of 101



Page 55 of 101



Resolution Number: 
Page 1

1 - 2023
2
3 RESOLUTION: Approving $500,000 from the Spirit Fund's Government Identified 
4 Community Projects Category to Expand the Childcare Space and Program 
5 Offerings at the Oshkosh YMCA
6
7 TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

8 WHEREAS, childcare is essential for growing economic development and worker stability; and

9 WHEREAS, when the community was at risk of losing available childcare spaces, the Oshkosh Community 

10 YMCA (hereinafter "YMCA") stepped up to meet that need; and

11 WHEREAS, the YMCA has 3 full-time Childcare centers, located at the 20th Ave YMCA, Downtown YMCA, 

12 and its newest addition, located on the UWO campus; and

13 WHEREAS, YMCA's program expansion provides a safe and healthy option for families in need of childcare 

14 and with few alternatives; and

15 WHEREAS, with a total cost of $3,832,438, and the YMCA requesting $500,000 from the ARPA Commission 

16 for this undertaking, this project increases childcare capacity by adding 40-50 slots.

17 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that $500,000 from 

18 the Spirit Fund's Government Identified Community Project category be approved to expand childcare space and 

19 program offerings at the YMCA. This funding is contingent on the YMCA remaining committed to its mission to 

20 strengthen the lives of individuals, families, and the community.

21 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that upon completion, the 

22 YMCA will submit supporting documentation to the Winnebago County Finance Director outlining the expenditures. 

23 The documentation will be submitted within 6 months of the completion of the project but not to exceed 5 years from 

24 date of disbursement. 

25 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that the YMCA shall be 

26 responsible for reimbursement to Winnebago County for any disbursed funds which are determined by Winnebago 

27 County to have been misused or misappropriated.  Any reimbursement of funds which is required by Winnebago 

28 County shall be due within 45 days after giving written notice to recipient of such misuse or misappropriation.

29 Fiscal Note:  $500,000 will be authorized for use from the Spirit Fund.

30 Respectfully submitted by:

31 ARPA STRATEGY AND OUTCOMES COMMISSION
32 Commission Vote:  7-0, 2 absent 
33

34 Vote Required for Passage: Two-Thirds of Membership
35

36 Approved by the Winnebago County Executive this  day of , 2023.

37

38
39 Jonathan D. Doemel
40 Winnebago County Executive

Page 56 of 101



 

Agenda Item Report  
 

 
 
DATE: March 6, 2024 
FROM: Office of the County Executive 
RE: Resolution 333-022024: Approving $350,000 from the Spirit Fund's 

Government Identified Community Projects Category for Child Care Resource 
and Referral To Support Child Care Providers with Training and Mentoring 
and In Turn Provide Increased Available Child Care Openings in Winnebago 
County 

 
General Description: 
This item has been referred back to the commission by the county board.  
 
Action Requested: 
Staff is asking the commission to discuss the concerns from the county board and 
determine the best course of action.  
 
Procedural Steps: 
Committee of 
Jurisdiction: ARPA Commission Meeting 

Date: 1/31/2024 

    

Action taken: 
Recommend 
Passage at 
$350,000 

Vote: 8-0 

    

County Board: __________ Meeting 
Date: __________ 

 
Background: 
Child Care Resource and Referral receives $37,200.00 total from all 5 Counties to 
provide certification services and receives limited funds as a base contract from DCF. 
CCR&R is a community-based non-profit agency offering services to parents, child care 
providers, employers, and the community that improve the quality and accessibility of 
early childhood education and care. 
 
The county board referred this back to the commission largely due to the perceived lack 
of concrete outcomes or deliverables articulated in the resolution. There were also 
concerns regarding the  nature of the expense as program-related rather than one-time 
improvements.  
 
Policy Discussion: 

Page 57 of 101



This request could be considered program/operational and not one-time capital funds. 
The ARPA Strategy and Outcomes Commission has previously stated projects should 
be one-time funds. The commission should discuss whether this is a programming or a 
one-time capital funds based on the document passed in May of 2023, which is 
included in your packet.  
 
The commission could also add specific expected outcomes to the resolution, which 
could also relieve concerns articulated by county board members.  
 
The commission has recognized Government Identified Community Projects that 
support or enhance county services: 
 
1)    Child Care Resource and Referral supports child care providers with training and 
mentoring 
and enhance services provided by Public Health and Human Services, as well as 
county-wide economic development. 
2)    $350,000 Spirit Fund Grant would provide Winnebago County residents with 
access to quality childcare providers with the resources they need to continue providing 
services or expand services. 
 
Attachments: 
1. CCR Application 
 
 

Page 58 of 101



Resolution Number: 
Page 1

1 333-022024
2
3 RESOLUTION: Approving $350,000 from the Spirit Fund's Government Identified 
4 Community Projects Category for Child Care Resource and Referral To Support 
5 Child Care Providers with Training and Mentoring and In Turn Provide Increased 
6 Available Child Care Openings in Winnebago County

7 TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

8 WHEREAS, Child Care Resource and Referral is a community-based non-profit agency offering services to 

9 parents, child care providers, employers, and the community that improve the quality and accessibility of early 

10 childhood education and care; and

11 WHEREAS, Child Care Resource and Referral supports child care providers with training and mentoring

12 and enhances services provided by Public Health and Human Services. 

13 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that $350,000 from 

14 the Spirit Fund's Government Identified Community Project category be approved for Child Care Resource and Referral 

15 to support child care providers with training and mentoring to increase available childcare openings in Winnebago 

16 County.

17 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that upon completion of the 

18 project, Child Care Resource and Referral will submit supporting documentation to the Winnebago County Finance 

19 Director outlining the expenditures. The documentation will be submitted within 6 months of the completion of the 

20 project but not to exceed 5 years from date of disbursement. 

21 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that Child Care Resource and 

22 Referral shall be responsible for reimbursement to Winnebago County for any disbursed funds which are determined 

23 by Winnebago County to have been misused or misappropriated.  Any reimbursement of funds which is required by 

24 Winnebago County shall be due within 45 days after giving written notice to recipient of such misuse or 

25 misappropriation.

26 Fiscal Note:  This resolution will not amend the County Budget.  $350,000 will be authorized for use from the 

27 Spirit Fund.

28 Respectfully submitted by:

29 ARPA STRATEGY AND OUTCOMES COMMISSION
30 Commission Vote:  8-0
31

32 Vote Required for Passage: Two-Thirds of Membership 
33

34 Approved by the Winnebago County Executive this  day of , 2024.

35

36
37
38 Jonathan D. Doemel
39 Winnebago County Executive

Page 59 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: Child Care Resource and Referral 
 

Assigned Application Number: 13 
 
 

Organization:  Child Care Resource and Referral 

CEO/Executive Director/Organization Leader: Candy Hall 

Name of person completing survey: Candy Hall 

Email: candyh@ccrrfoxvalley.org 

Phone: 9203768598 

Type of organization requesting funding: Non-profit organization 

Organization’s mission statement (if applicable): CCR&R is a community-based non-profit agency 

offering services to parents, child care providers, employers, and the community that improve the 

quality and accessibility of early childhood education and care. 

Does the organization conduct a third-party financial audit? Yes 

Describe the general scope of the project for which funding would be requested: It supports child 

care providers with training and mentoring to assist with staff retention and recruiting family child care 

providers that could provide more child care slots in Winnebago County. This would be exceptionally 

helpful in the areas considered a child care desert. 

Who will lead the project (Internal, City, Winnebago County, State of WI...)? Winnebago County 

Public Health 

Where is the primary location of the project? Winnebago County 

How many total individuals would this project serve each year? 92 child care providers 

What areas (cities/regions/school districts) of Winnebago County will the project serve? all of 

Winnebago County 

Please describe the lasting impact of this project on the community: The lasting impact would be to 

increase the number of quality child care slots in the County. This allows families to work and trust that 

their child is cared for safely. Families that have care for their children can provide for their family and 

contribute to the community, and children that are in safe care are better performers in school and as 

adults. 

In what stage is the project? Ready to implement 

What is the estimated completion date? Dec-26 

Estimated cost of the entire project:  $915,000 

Requested amount (range) from Winnebago County Spirit Fund: $450,000 

Other than Spirit funds, how will the project be funded: unrestricted funds and in kind 

Page 60 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: Child Care Resource and Referral 
 

Assigned Application Number: 13 
 
Is completion of the project dependent on receiving the full amount requested? Yes 

Has the organization received any type of government (local, state, or federal) funding in the past 2 

years? if so, please list  Our agency receives $37,200.00 total from all 5 Counties to provide 

certification services. We also receive limited funds as a base contract from DCF. 

What portion of the project will be or is anticipated to be funded by local, state or federal government 

funding? A small percentage will be funded by certification contracts. 

List any ARPA funding received from other cities, counties or municipalities: Calumet County 

$689,782.50 

 

Waupaca County $1,202,700.00 

Who will be responsible for any ongoing maintenance of the project? Child Care Resource and 

Referral 

Will this increase the organizations operating expenses, if so, please explain how that will be 

maintained? Child Care Resource and Referral will continue to support the programs that benefit 

from the ARPA dollars by maintaining our continuous search for grant funding and continuing the 

relationships built with the agency to support child care in Winnebago County. 

 
  

Page 61 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: Child Care Resource and Referral 
 

Assigned Application Number: 13 
 
 

Project Information as Sorted by Citizen Panel as of 9/5/2023 
 
 
R/Y/G and original Application number: 13 
 
Request from:      Child Care Resource and Referral 
 
Type of project:    Childcare 
      
General Scope of Project:   To support child care providers with training and 
mentoring to assist with staff retention and recruiting family child care providers (to aid in opening 
additional child care slots)       
Project Lead:     Winnebago County Public Health   
     
Primary location:    Winnebago County     
   
# of individuals served by project:  92 child care providers     
Areas served:     all of Winnebago County    
     
Lasting impact:     The lasting impact would be to increase the number of 
quality child care slots in the County. This allows families to work and trust that their child is cared for 
safely. Families that have care for their children can provide for their family and contribute to the 
community, and children that are in safe care are better performers in school and as adults.  
  
 
Completion Date:    Dec-26        
Project Stage:     Ready to implement     
   
Project Cost:     $915,000      
   
Requested Amount:     450,000      
  
Other Funding:     unrestricted funds and in kind    
    
Is full Amt Required:    Yes       
Other Govt. Funding:    Our agency receives $37,200.00 total from all 5 
Counties to provide certification services. We also receive limited funds as a base contract from DCF. 
      
Portion funded by local, state or federal government funding: 

A small percentage will be funded by certification 
contracts.    

Other ARPA Funds:    Calumet County $689,782.50 
 
Waupaca County $1,202,700.00        

Page 62 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: Child Care Resource and Referral 
 

Assigned Application Number: 13 
 
Ongoing Maint:     Child Care Resource and Referral   
    
Increase to Operational budget:  Child Care Resource and Referral will continue to 
support the programs that benefit from the ARPA dollars by maintaining our continuous search for grant 
funding and continuing the relationships built with the agency to support child care in Winnebago Coun 
    
Legacy:      N/A 
 
One-time funding:    request for operations? ongoing expenses.  
      
Geographic service area:   Winn. Co.       
Other funding:     unrestricted funds and in kind    
    
Notes:      $450,000: funding for training, suplimenting wages 
        
GOVT: Debt Avoidance:        N/A 
 
Sustainability focused:    N/A 
 
ER Response:     N/A  
 
Water Quality:     N/A 
 
Quality of Life:     N/A 
 
Funding to assist private investor:  N/A 

 

Page 63 of 101



 

Agenda Item Report  
 

 
 
DATE: March 6, 2024 
FROM: Office of the County Executive 
RE: Presentation: Childcare Incubator Program 
 
General Description: 
This is a presentation by ADVOCAP on a child care capital project. Staff is looking for 
commission feedback on whether the county should be involved.  
 
Action Requested: 
Staff is asking for the commission to provide feedback on the presentation. The 
commission could request a funding of the project at another meeting or to refer it to a 
department for further review.  
 
Procedural Steps: 
The commission is reviewing this because the county board referred child care back to 
committee. Members of the county board seemed more interested in private sector or 
capital funds to help solve the problem. This project might fit that need.  
 
Background: 
Months after the survey for project ideas closed, ADVOCAP came to county 
administration looking to partner on this project. The intent is for the private sector, 
ADVOCAP - a quasi governmental agency, and others to partner on the project.  
 
A survey response was not submitted because the project was not an idea at that time. 
Previously, ADVOCAP had not been offered Spirit Funds as an option because of the 
deadline; however, when the county board referred a child care grant back to this 
commission, it became clear the board would like the commission to pursue other child 
care options and propose the best project available.  
 
ADVOCAP will present the project for consideration.  
 
Potential options county could take: 

• Provide Spirit Fund resources 
• Explore if county land could be provided for the project  
• Provide other financial resources (most likely general fund balance) 
• Provide technical assistance on grant writing 

 
 
Policy Discussion: 

Page 64 of 101



Previously, the commission has considered projects which did not submit a survey 
application within the deadline.  
 
This project became an idea last fall. It was put on the agenda because the county 
board referred back a different child care application.  
 
The commission should provide feedback and discussion on the project.  
 
Questions to consider: 

1. Is this project a fit for the county to be involved in?  
2. Is this project an alternative to solve the child care crisis?  
3. Should the commission explore funding this even if the project idea began 

after the survey deadline?  
 
 
Attachments: 
1. ADVOCAP Provided Summary 
2. Project Budget 
3. Childcare Incubator FIRST FLOOR PLAN 
 
 

Page 65 of 101



 

 

 

ADVOCAP is seeking funds to construct a childcare business incubator. ADVOCAP’s Childcare 
Incubator Program is a new and innovative way to address our childcare crisis and increase the 
number of individuals in the workforce. The program is designed for low-income individuals to 
start their own childcare business in ADVOCAP’s incubator facility. Participants will have their 
own space within the incubator. The incubator is not a childcare center, it is a shared facility 
with separate incubators running their business independently from one another.  The facility 
will offer a flexible space to allow each childcare to accommodate the various age ranges of the 
children they are caring for. This flexibility also allows for new childcare providers to move in 
when a business owner expands and moves out.  

 

Through our Business Development Department, ADVOCAP will provide technical assistance so 
business owners can obtain the proper training and licensing necessary to run a successful 
childcare. ADVOCAP will also assist in developing successful business and marketing plans. We 
will ensure that each business has proper insurance coverage and proper start up equipment as 
they begin their journey of self-employment. 

 

The new businesses created will contribute to economic growth and community development. 
The Program will create additional childcare options supporting working parents, promoting 
early childhood development, and contributing to the local economy.  The Childcare Incubator 
has the flexibility to provide third shift childcare opening opportunities for further workforce 
development.   

 

With the development of the Childcare Incubator facility, we will provide opportunities for 
businesses to grow and expand, developing childcare opportunities for decades to come.  This 
model can be replicated and expanded in other communities.  The childcare crisis is a 
community problem, it will take a community to help fix it. 

Page 66 of 101



Building Cost
  $250 per square feet x 1,200 x 4 units 1,200,000

Land 100,000

Parking lot/side walks 150,000

Playground Cost with Fence 100,000

Running utilities 50,000

Landscaping 100,000

Solar panels 150,000

Appliances 30,000

Equipment 20,000

Over-runs 100,000

Total Estimated Project Costs 2,000,000

City of Oshkosh
ARPA Grant Application

Budget
Childcare Incubator Project

Page 67 of 101



MECH. 

4
4
'-

0
"

120'-7 1/4"

10'-2 1/2" 16'-11" 6'-4" 16'-11" 19'-10 1/4" 16'-11" 6'-4" 16'-11 1/4" 10'-2 1/2"

SHARED PLAYGROUND

2
'-

0
"

4
2
'-

0
"

UNIT 1

1200 S.F.

UNIT 2

1200 S.F.

UNIT 3

1200 S.F.

UNIT 4

1200 S.F.

MECH. 

KITCHEN

S
T
O

R
A

G
E

S
L
E
E
P

 A
R

E
A

CLASSROOM

BATH

BATH

KITCHEN

S
T
O

R
A

G
E

S
L
E
E
P

 A
R

E
A

CLASSROOM

KITCHEN

S
T
O

R
A

G
E

S
L
E
E
P

 A
R

E
A

CLASSROOM

KITCHEN

S
T
O

R
A

G
E

S
L
E
E
P

 A
R

E
A

CLASSROOM

BATH

BATH

W/DW/DW/DW/D

REF.REF.REF.REF.

H
O

O
K

S
 W

/ 
S
H

E
L
F

H
O

O
K

S
 W

/ 
S
H

E
L
F

H
O

O
K

S
 W

/ 
S
H

E
L
F

H
O

O
K

S
 W

/ 
S
H

E
L
F

DWDWDWDW

STOVESTOVE STOVE STOVE

NUMBER OF UNITS:    4

S.F. PER UNIT:     1200 S.F.

TOTAL BUILDING 

S.F:    4,800 S.F.

AGE OF MINIMUM NUMBER   MAXIMUM

CHILDREN     OF CHILD CARE NUMBER OF

      WORKERS TO CHILDREN IN

        CHILDREN    A GROUP

BIRTH - 2 YRS. 1:4 8

2 YRS. - 2 1/2 YRS. 1:6 12

2 1/2 YRS. - 3 YRS. 1:8 16

3 YRS. - 4 YRS. 1:10 20

4 YRS. TO 5 YRS. 1:13 26

5 YRS. TO 6 YRS. 1:17 34

6 YRS. AND OVER 1:18 36

TABLE DCF 251.055

MAXIMUM GROUP SIZE AND

MINIMUM NUMBER OF CHILD

  CARE WORKERS IN

GROUP CHILD CARE CENTER

0' 10' 20'

3/32" = 1'-0"NORTH SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

PROJECT INFO

SHEET NUMBER

JOB NUMBER

PRELIMINARY DATES

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

A1.1

A
D

V
O

C
A

P

C
H

IL
D

C
A

R
E

  
●

IN
C

U
B

A
T

O
R

S

P
R

O
P

O
S
E

D
 C

O
N

C
E

P
T

 F
O

R
:

240032000

ARCHITECTURAL FIRST FLOOR PLAN

FEB. 12, 2024

Page 68 of 101



 

Agenda Item Report  
 

 
 
DATE: March 6, 2024 
FROM: Office of the County Executive 
RE: Resolution:  Approving $_______ from the Spirit Fund's Government 

Identified Community Projects Category for First 5 Fox Valley To Promote 
Cross-Sector Collaboration and Build an Efficient, Effective, and Equitable 
Family Support System (Request $300,000) 

 
General Description: 
This resolution would provide a grant to First 5 Fox Valley. The organization's request is 
$300,000.  
 
Action Requested: 
To advance, a motion to recommend the county board approve this resolution would be 
in order.  
 
Procedural Steps: 
Committee of 
Jurisdiction: 

ARPA Strategy and 
Outcomes 

Meeting 
Date: March 6, 2024 

    
Action taken: __________ Vote: __________ 
    

County Board: __________ Meeting 
Date: __________ 

 
Background: 
This item was tabled and delayed due to concerns presented by Human Services 
Director Bill Topel. Director Topel has since reviewed the application, meeting met with 
multiple county departments and family service agencies in the county and supports the 
grant. 
 
First 5 Fox Valley (FSFV) is an organization that is leveraging collective impact work 
and strategic partnerships to build a solid foundation for children in their first five years. 
The Help Me Grow (HMG) community partnership model used by First 5 Fox Valley, 
promotes protective factors among families and their young children as a primary 
prevention strategy. Outreach will take place across health care, early care and 
education, schools, and social service agencies linking resources to support families. 
This navigator position will work locally within Winnebago County, focused on less 
served areas and use the ASQ developmental screening tools.  
 
Since 2021 the significant increase in children who were referred to the HMG program 

Page 69 of 101



and underwent appropriate developmental screenings. The mean number of children 
screened per county increased from 3.2 to 66.8 over the course of the project period. 
This grant will provide the means to engage more deeply and authentically with 
Winnebago County organizations that work with families who have children ages 0-5 
and who don't often access traditional community resources or child developmental 
screenings. As FSFV continues to expand free developmental screening opportunities, 
it is hopeful that Protective Factors will be strengthened, and resiliency built to buffer 
adverse conditions they might face. Our hope is to find children where they are and 
strengthen our commitment to equitable access to services for all families free and 
open to all. 
 
Policy Discussion: 
A question remains whether this is programming dollars or one-time funds. The 
commission previously discussed support for the project because it would be one-time 
funds and other resources would be available down the road.  
 
This request could be considered operational/program spending. It also exceeds the 
50% match request from the ARPA Commission. Included with this item is the funding 
opportunities guidance passed by the commission.  
 
The commission has recognized Government Identified Community Projects that 
support or enhance county services: 
 
1) First 5 Fox Valley will contract a fulltime- or several PT Family Resource Navigator 
positions enhance services provided by Public Health, Human Services, Sheriff's Office, 
and others. 
 
2) $300,000 Spirit Fund Grant would provide Winnebago County residents with access 
to nationally recognized evidence-based model of Help Me Grow within Winnebago 
County. 
 
Attachments: 
1. First 5 Fox Valley Inc application 
2. RESOLUTION - First 5 Fox Valley 
3. Spirit Fund Project Funding Opportunities 
 
 

Page 70 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: First 5 Fox Valley, Inc 

Assigned Application Number: 29 

Organization: First 5 Fox Valley, Inc 

CEO/Executive Director/Organization Leader: Barb Tengesdal 

Name of person completing survey: 

Email: Director@firstfivefoxvalley.org 

Phone: 9204225437 

Barb Tengesdal 

Type of organization requesting funding: Non-profit organization 

Organization's mission statement (if applicable): Cultivate a community that empowers and 

supports every family to build a solid foundation for children in their first five years. 

Defining the Mission statement: First 5 Fox Valley (FSFV) is an organization that is leveraging collective 

impact work and strategic partnerships to cultivate communities that empowers every family to build a 

solid foundation for children in their first five years. 

Does the organization conduct a third-party financial audit? Yes 

Describe the general scope of the project for which funding would be requested: This grant 

application will promote cross-sector collaboration and build an efficient, effective, and equitable family 

support system, using the nationally recognized evidence-based model of Help Me Grow within 

Winnebago County. First 5 Fox Valley will contract a fulltime- or several PT Family Resource Navigator 

positions that will benefit families by listening to them, linking them to services, support them through 

transitions over time, and deepening connections with partner agencies. The innovative approach of the 

Help Me Grow community partnership model used by First 5 Fox Valley, will mitigate the impact of 

adversity and promote protective factors among families and their young children as a primary 

prevention strategy. Outreach and in-service training on best practices and early intervention will take 

place across health care, early care and education, schools, and social service agencies linking resources 

to support families with a "warm handoff" provided by the HMG Family Resource Navigator position. 

This navigator position will work within Winnebago County- focused on less served towns, villages and 

populations and use of the ASQ developmental screening tools. 

Who will lead the project (Internal, City, Winnebago County, State of WI. .. )? Winnebago County 

Public Health Department 

Page 71 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: First 5 Fox Valley, Inc 

Assigned Application Number: 29 

Where is the primary location of the project? Navigators are embedded within current partnering 

agencies. Conversations are currently underway with Family Services- Parenting Connection, UW

Oshkosh Head Start, Boys and Girls Club new hub for shared services, and others 

How many total individuals would this project serve each year? currently 1366 children and 

1263 families. We will expand that number by 10% each of the 3 years of funding. 

What areas (cities/regions/school districts) of Winnebago County will the project serve? 

Winnebago County: Bute Des Morts, Eureka, Larsen, Menasha, Neenah, Omro, Oshkosh, Pickett, 

Waukau, Winnebago, Winneconne, zipcodes and school districts within county jurisdiction. 

Please describe the lasting impact of this project on the community: This grant will provide the 

means to engage more deeply and authentically with communities, developing relationships with local 

organizations that work with families who have children ages 0-5 and who don't often access traditional 

community resources or child developmental screenings. As FSFVcontinues to expand free 

developmental screening opportunities, it is hopeful that Protective Factors will be strengthened and 

resiliency built to buffer adverse conditions they might face. Our hope to find children where they are 

and strengthen our commitment to equitable access to services for all families free and open to all. 

In what stage is the project? In the process of implementing 

What is the estimated completion date? December 30th 2026 

Estimated cost of the entire project: 450000 

Requested amount (range) from Winnebago County Spirit Fund: 300000 

Other than Spirit funds, how will the project be funded: Matching grant funds from the AHW 

Community Impact Grant and the Medical College of Wisconsin Maternal and Child Health Equity Grant, 

the unspent funds of the Oshkosh Area Community foundation Developmental Screening project grant. 

Is completion of the project dependent on receiving the full amount requested? No 

Has the organization received any type of government (local, state, or federal) funding in the past 2 

years? if so, please list Yes. Private, public and community foundation funds have been 

awarded to First 5 Fox Valley for various projects. 

• 2023 ThedaCare Community Health Grant $55,000

• 2023-2024 Child Abuse and Neglect Prevention Board- Connecting Resources & Child Car

Page 72 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: First 5 Fox Valley, Inc 

Assigned Application Number: 29 

What portion of the project will be or is anticipated to be funded by local, state or federal government 

funding? the navigator position identified specifically to work within Winnebago County 

communities, school districts and child care programs. 

List any ARPA funding received from other cities, counties or municipalities: Outagamie County 

ARPA grant 2021 

AHW- Maternal and Child Health Equity Grant- federal pass through to Wi Department of Health to be 

distributed by the Alliance for Healthier Wisconsin foundation. 

Who will be responsible for any ongoing maintenance of the project? First 5 Fox Valley, Inc 

Will this increase the organizations operating expenses, if so, please explain how that will be 

maintained? No. The sustainability of the navigator positions are created with partners embedding 

the positions within their own budgets after 3 years of start up support- such as this grant opportunity. 

Page 73 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: First 5 Fox Valley, Inc 

Assigned Application Number: 29 

Project Information as Sorted by Citizen Panel as of 9/5/2023 

R/V /G and original Application number: 

Request from: 

Type of project: 

General Scope of Project: 

Navigator positions 

Project Lead: 

29 

First 5 Fox Valley, Inc 

Programming 

contract a fulltime- or several PT Family Resource 

Winnebago County Public Health Department 

Primary location: Navigators are embedded within current partnering 

agencies. Conversations are currently underway with Family Services- Parenting Connection, UW

Oshkosh Head Start, Boys and Girls Club new hub for shared services, and others 

# of individuals served by project: currently 1366 children and 1263 families. We will 

expand that number by 10% each of the 3 years of funding. 

Areas served: Winnebago County: Bute Des Marts, Eureka, Larsen, 

Menasha, Neenah, Omro, Oshkosh, Pickett, Waukau, Winnebago, Winneconne, zipcodes and school 

districts within county jurisdiction. 

Lasting impact: This grant will provide the means to engage more 

deeply and authentically with communities, developing relationships with local organizations that work 

with families who have children ages 0-5 and who don't often access traditional community resources or 

child developmental screenings. As FSFVcontinues to expand free developmental screening 

opportunities, it is hopeful that Protective Factors will be strengthened and resiliency built to buffer 

adverse conditions they might face. Our hope to find children where they are and strengthen our 

commitment to equitable access to services for all families free and open to all. 

Completion Date: 

Project Stage: 

Project Cost: 

Requested Amount: 

December 30th 2026 

In process of implementing 

$450,000 

300,000 

Other Funding: Matching grant funds from the AHW Community Impact 

Grant and the Medical College of Wisconsin Maternal and Child Health Equity Grant, the unspent funds 

of the Oshkosh Area Community foundation Developmental Screening project grant. 

Is full Amt Required: No 

Other Govt. Funding: Yes. Private, public and community foundation funds 

have been awarded to First 5 Fox Valley for various projects. 

Page 74 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: First 5 Fox Valley, Inc 

Assigned Application Number: 29 

• 2023 ThedaCare Community Health Grant $55,000

• 2023-2024 Child Abuse and Neglect Prevention Board- Connecting Resources & Child Care

$110,461. Navigators to support work with child care programs.

• 2022-2023 AHW Community-Led Population and Community Health Study $200,000-

• 2022 Outagamie County ARPA Non-profit Community Grants $50,000

• 2021-2022 CHAT Funding $58,000

• 2021 WI Department of Children and Families PDG- Community Innovation $100,000

• 2020-2024 Basic Needs Giving Partnership Fox Cities- Welcome Baby Grant $500,000 over 5

years

• 2020-2023 Oshkosh Area Community Foundation- Oshkosh Developmental Screening Grant

$25�200 over 3 yea�.

Portion funded by local, state or federal government funding: 

the navigator position identified specifically to work 

within Winnebago County communities, school districts and 

child care programs. 

Other ARPA Funds: Outagamie County ARPA grant 2021 

AHW- Maternal and Child Health Equity Grant- federal pass through to Wi Department of Health to be 

distributed by the Alliance for Healthier Wisconsin foundation. 

Ongoing Maint: First 5 Fox Valley, Inc 

Increase to Operational budget: No. The sustainability of the navigator positions are 

created with partners embedding the positions within their own budgets after 3 years of start up 

support- such as this grant opportunity. 

��q: � 

One-time funding: Operational, says for 3 years, intent for other programs 

to take over 

Geographic service area: Winn. Co. 

Other funding: Matching grant funds from the AHW Community Impact 

Grant and the Medical College of Wisconsin Maternal and Child Health Equity Grant, the unspent funds 

of the Oshkosh Area Community foundation Developmental Screening project grant. 

Notes: 

the operational costs of staff person. 

GOVT: Debt Avoidance: 

Unsure of lasting impact if other programs don't pick up 

Quazi-Govt? Winn.Co Health Dept. 

Page 75 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: First 5 Fox Valley, Inc 

Assigned Application Number: 29 

Sustainability focused: 

ER Response: 

Water Quality: 

Quality of Life: 

Funding to assist private investor: 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

Page 76 of 101



Resolution Number: 
Page 1

1 - 2024
2
3 RESOLUTION: Approving $_______ from the Spirit Fund's Government 
4 Identified Community Projects Category for First 5 Fox Valley To Promote Cross-
5 Sector Collaboration and Build an Efficient, Effective, and Equitable Family Support 
6 System 
7
8 TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

9 WHEREAS, First 5 Fox Valley is an organization that is leveraging collective impact work and strategic 

10 partnerships to cultivate communities that empower every family to build a solid foundation for children in their first 

11 five years; and

12 WHEREAS, the innovative approach of the Help Me Grow community partnership model used by First 5 Fox 

13 Valley will mitigate the impact of adversity and promote protective factors among families and their young children as 

14 a primary prevention strategy; and

15 WHEREAS, the funds requested will allow First 5 Fox Valley to contract a full-time or several part time 

16 Family Resource Navigator positions, and;

17 WHEREAS, outreach and in-service training on best practices and early intervention will take place across 

18 health care, early care, and education, schools, and social service agencies linking resources to support families with 

19 a “warm handoff” provided by a Help Me Grow Family Resource Navigator position; and

20 WHEREAS, the Navigator Position will work within Winnebago County- focused on less served towns, 

21 villages and populations and use of the ASQ developmental screening tools; and

22 WHEREAS, these funds will provide the means to engage more deeply and authentically with communities, 

23 developing relationships with local organizations that work with families who have children ages 0-5 and who don’t 

24 often access traditional community resources or child developmental screenings.

25 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that $_________ 

26 from the Spirit Fund's Government Identified Community Project category be approved for First 5 Fox Valley to promote 

27 cross-sector collaboration and build an efficient, effective, and equitable family support system.

28 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that upon completion of the 

29 project, First 5 Fox Valley will submit supporting documentation to the Winnebago County Finance Director outlining 

30 the expenditures. The documentation will be submitted within 6 months of the completion of the project but not to 

31 exceed 5 years from date of disbursement. 

32 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that First 5 Fox Valley shall be 

33 responsible for reimbursement to Winnebago County for any disbursed funds which are determined by Winnebago 

34 County to have been misused or misappropriated.  Any reimbursement of funds which is required by Winnebago 

35 County shall be due within 45 days after giving written notice to recipient of such misuse or misappropriation.

36 Fiscal Note:  $_________ will be authorized for use from the Spirit Fund.

37

38 Respectfully submitted by:

39 ARPA STRATEGY AND OUTCOMES COMMISSION
40 Commission Vote:  

Page 77 of 101



Resolution Number: 
Page 2

41 Vote Required for Passage: Two-Thirds of Membership 
42 Approved by the Winnebago County Executive this  day of , 2024.

43

44
45
46 Jonathan D. Doemel
47 Winnebago County Executive
48

Page 78 of 101



 

 

Spirit Fund Project Funding Opportunities 

Background: In March of 2023, the Winnebago County Board applied surplus dollars to a special revenue 

fund titled the Spirit Fund to invest in legacy projects for the county government and certain identified 

community projects. The fund totals just over $33 million and is split roughly in half for county government 

projects and identified community projects. Spending proposals are sent to the county board after 

deliberation of the ARPA Strategy and Outcomes Commission. The commission is putting out this funding 

opportunities request. 

This document was approved at the commission's May 3, 2023, meeting.  

Minimum and Maximum Awards: For planning purposes, a minimum award is $50,000 with a maximum 

award of $500,000. The commission upon review may choose to increase the maximum awards. Proposals 

seeking more than $500,000 should include a section on why more funding is needed. 

Match Dollars: Matching funds are required. No award may exceed 50% of the total project cost. Other 

government funds are eligible for match. All government funds should not exceed 75% of the total project 

unless the proposal is for a government project. Private and foundation matching dollars are preferred.  

One-time funds: The commission is seeking ideas to fund legacy, one-time funds. At this time, pilot 

programs which require on-going or future costs will not be considered. Requests for operational dollars 

will also not be considered.   

Framework of Spirit Fund Spending: All proposals should clearly articulate how the project complies with 

as many outcomes identified in the commission approved Framework of Spirit Fund Spending document.  

Broad Categories and Funding Available: At this time, it is unknown how much total funding is available. 

The amounts included in the Spirt Fund planning document are below and are a best guess of allocation. 

In addition to the framework document, proposals should fit into three broad categories. 

Health and Human Services - $2,500,000 

Economic Development and Housing Initiatives - $6,120,624 

Veterans Transitional Housing - $1,000,000 

Project Completion: It is expected that all projects which receive awards are completed by December of 

2026.  

Other County Funding: All proposals must identify any county funding, including pass through grants, 

received in the past ten years, and requested in 2023 and 2024 from all departments.  

Other Funding Opportunities: Proposals which identify other funding or grant opportunities are 

encouraged even if the organization submitting is not requesting the funds. Ideas for using Spirit Fund 

dollars as a required match in other grant and funding opportunities are especially encouraged.  

Single-Audit: All organizations receiving money may be required to submit a single-audit or other audit 

documents. Previous years' audits may be requested prior to awarding of Spirit Funds.  

Length of Application: All proposals are limited to a word count of 2000.  

Page 79 of 101



 

 

Attachments: There is no limit to attachments; however, attachments may not be scored.  

Submission and questions: All proposals and questions should be submitted to 

spirit@winnebagocountywi.gov by July 15, 2023. Question answers will be posted to the Winnebago 

County website.  

Review and Scoring: All proposals will be reviewed and scored by a citizen member of the ARPA Strategy 

and Outcomes Commission in July with staff support from the Office of the County Executive. The citizen 

member will be determined by a majority vote of the commission. With consent of the commission co-

chairs, the citizen member may choose up-to three additional citizen reviewers. Each reviewer will 

represent one of the following areas: Oshkosh, Neenah/Menasha, and the rural areas. No additional 

reviewer may have a conflict of interest with any of the applications.  

The commission appointed Beth Oswald as the citizen member to lead scoring.  

Ideas for County Government Projects: This announcement of funding opportunities is intended for 

community projects. Ideas for County Government Projects could be submitted using the same email 

address and 2000-word limit.  

Advertising of this document: This document will be posted on the front page of the county website, 

released with a press release to the media, emailed to all current partners of the county, emailed to all 

local governments in the county, and emailed to the Oshkosh Area Community Foundation, United Ways 

covering the county & chambers of commerce covering the county to encourage those entities to email 

to potential applications.  

 

Page 80 of 101

mailto:spirit@winnebagocountywi.gov


 

Agenda Item Report  
 

 
 
DATE: March 6, 2024 
FROM: Office of the County Executive 
RE: Discussion/Possible Action:  Request from the Spirit Fund's Government 

Identified Community Projects Category for Property Expansion or 
Programming at the YMCA of the Fox Cities  

 
General Description: 
Discussion of the YMCA of Fox Cities redevelopment project in Neenah.  
 
Action Requested: 
This is a dicussion with possible action item. The commission could vote to advance 
this item to another meeting.  
 
Procedural Steps: 
The commission is discussing this project and providing feedback to staff for a future 
item or direction on how to proceed.  
 
Background: 
Prior to the deadline of the project survey, the YMCA of Fox Cities met with staff to 
discuss a facilities and capital needs assessment. At the time of the survey's 
completion, the YMCA knew that a significant investment would be needed in the 
Neenah-Menasha branch facility, which is across from the Winnebago County Neenah 
Human Services building.  
 
The YMCA is looking for community partners to determine how to best redevelop and 
improve Neenah-Menasha facility.  
 
The survey has been included in the packet. Representatives for the YMCA have been 
invited to the meeting. 
 
Policy Discussion: 
This project is a bit of an unknown as to what it will be; however, it is a great opportunity 
for the county to be involved as a partner and neighbor.  
 
The request by staff is for the commission to provide feedback on whether you believe 
exploring a partnership and reserving $500,000 in Spirit Funds is appropriate. It might 
be a few months before a concrete plan is in place; nonetheless, the commission can 
recommend allocating funds to ensure a dialogue continues.  
 
Attachments: 

Page 81 of 101



1. YMCA Fox Cities Survey Submission 
 
 

Page 82 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: YMCA of the Fox Cities 
Assigned Application Number: 56 

 
Organization: YMCA of the Fox Cities 

CEO/Executive Director/Organization Leader: Bret Salscheider 

Name of person completing survey: Bret Salscheider 

Email: bsalscheider@ymcafoxcities.org 

Phone: 9209547605 

Type of organization requesting funding: Non-profit organization 

Organization’s mission statement (if applicable): To put Christian principles into practice by 

promoting youth, adult and family activities that build a healthy spirit, mind and body for all. 

Does the organization conduct a third-party financial audit? Yes - CLA 

Describe the general scope of the project for which funding would be requested: The YMCA of 

the Fox Cities is embarking on an ambitious capital development project aimed at modernizing its 

Neenah-Menasha branch facility. The primary goal is to enhance services and better cater to the needs 

of residents in the northern part of Winnebago County. This transformative endeavor will address 

various critical community issues, with a particular focus on health inequities faced by marginalized 

populations, workforce development, childcare, and housing. 

 

Project Objectives: 

 

Health Equity: The project seeks to bridge the gap in health disparities among marginalized populations 

by offering comprehensive health services and programs, catering to individuals from infancy to senior 

citizens. 

 

Collaborative Partnerships: The YMCA aims to collaborate with like-minded partners to foster a united 

approach towards addressing community health and well-being. By joining forces, they can create a 

robust support system. 

 

Diverse Program Accessibility: The redeveloped space will expand program offerings, ensuring 

accessibility to individuals and families from diverse backgrounds. This will foster an inclusive 

environment that welcomes everyone. 

 

Local Childcare Capacity: The project will significantly boost the local childcare capacity, providing 

reliable and affordable options for families in the region. 

Page 83 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: YMCA of the Fox Cities 
Assigned Application Number: 56 

 
 

Additionally, the mixed-use redevelopment project presents a unique opportunity to address affordable 

housing challenges. It includes the possibility of incorporating temporary transitional housing for 

veterans, further fulfilling an essential societal need. 

 

The YMCA of the Fox Cities is committed to making a positive impact on the community through this 

transformation, catering to the comprehensive needs of its residents and creating a brighter future for 

all. 

 

Who will lead the project (Internal, City, Winnebago County, State of WI...)? YMCA of the Fox Cities 

Where is the primary location of the project? Neenah, WI / 110 North Water Street 

How many total individuals would this project serve each year? 15,000 

What areas (cities/regions/school districts) of Winnebago County will the project serve? Neenah 

& Menasha School Districts; City of Neenah, City of Menasha, Village of Fox Crossing, Town of Vinland, 

Town of Clayton,  Town of Winchester 

Please describe the lasting impact of this project on the community: Enhanced initiatives and 

offerings are being introduced for residents residing in the northern area of Winnebago County. These 

endeavors aim to reduce instances of chronic disease, enhance social bonds, promote better mental 

well-being, and provide accessible, top-notch, cost-effective childcare services. Furthermore, there is a 

commitment to furnish stable housing options, both permanent and transitional, to veterans and 

underserved communities. 

In what stage is the project? Research phase 

What is the estimated completion date? 2025/2026 

Estimated cost of the entire project:  $30,000,000 

Requested amount (range) from Winnebago County Spirit Fund: $500,000 

Other than Spirit funds, how will the project be funded: Private/Public Donations, Grants 

(State/Federal aka WEDC), Tax Credits (Housing, New Market) Real Estate Land Proceeds 

Is completion of the project dependent on receiving the full amount requested? Yes 

Has the organization received any type of government (local, state, or federal) funding in the past 2 

years? if so, please list  Childcare Counts - ARPA 

 

Beyond the Classroom – ARPA 

Page 84 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: YMCA of the Fox Cities 
Assigned Application Number: 56 

 
 

What portion of the project will be or is anticipated to be funded by local, state or federal government 

funding? 4 - 10% 

List any ARPA funding received from other cities, counties or municipalities: Outagamie County - 

$50,000 for afterschool programming, youth enrichment programming and childcare assistance 

Who will be responsible for any ongoing maintenance of the project? YMCA of the Fox Cities 

Will this increase the organizations operating expenses, if so, please explain how that will be 

maintained? No. This redevelopment would renovate and modernize its existing plant. It will lead to 

more efficient use of space, occupancy expenses and staffing costs. 

 

Additionally, with other like minded partners, the opportunity for cost sharing is part of the long term 

sustainability strategy. 

 

  

Page 85 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: YMCA of the Fox Cities 
Assigned Application Number: 56 

 
Project Information as Sorted by Citizen Panel as of 9/5/2023 

 
 
R/Y/G and original Application number: 56 
 
Request from:      YMCA of the Fox Cities 
 
Type of project:    Property Expansion or Programming? 
      
General Scope of Project:   Renovation to expand programming/ADA compliance 
updates       
Project Lead:     YMCA of the Fox Cities     
   
Primary location:    Neenah, WI / 110 North Water Street   
     
# of individuals served by project:  15,000     
Areas served:     Neenah & Menasha School Districts; City of Neenah, 
City of Menasha, Village of Fox Crossing, Town of Vinland, Town of Clayton,  Town of Winchester  
       
Lasting impact:     Enhanced initiatives and offerings are being introduced 
for residents residing in the northern area of Winnebago County. These endeavors aim to reduce 
instances of chronic disease, enhance social bonds, promote better mental well-being, and provide 
accessible, top-notch, cost-effective childcare services. Furthermore, there is a commitment to furnish 
stable housing options, both permanent and transitional, to veterans and underserved communities. 
   
 
Completion Date:    2025/2026      
  
Project Stage:     Research phase      
  
Project Cost:     $30,000,000      
   
Requested Amount:     500,000      
  
Other Funding:     Private/Public Donations, Grants (State/Federal aka 
WEDC), Tax Credits (Housing, New Market) Real Estate Land Proceeds     
   
Is full Amt Required:    Yes       
Other Govt. Funding:    Childcare Counts - ARPA 
 
Beyond the Classroom – ARPA 
 
       
Portion funded by local, state or federal government funding: 

4 - 10%    

Page 86 of 101



Name of Organization leading the project/looking for funding: YMCA of the Fox Cities 
Assigned Application Number: 56 

 
Other ARPA Funds:    Outagamie County - $50,000 for afterschool 
programming, youth enrichment programming and childcare assistance     
   
Ongoing Maint:     YMCA of the Fox Cities     
  
Increase to Operational budget:  No. This redevelopment would renovate and modernize 
its existing plant. It will lead to more efficient use of space, occupancy expenses and staffing costs. 
 
 
 
Additionally, with other like minded partners, the opportunity for cost sharing is part of the  
   
Legacy:      yes 
 
One-time funding:    yes        
Geographic service area:   Neenah-Menasha Area     
  
Other funding:     Private/Public Donations, Grants (State/Federal aka 
WEDC), Tax Credits (Housing, New Market) Real Estate Land Proceeds     
   
Notes:      is the amount requested for a building/project or 
programatic 
         
GOVT: Debt Avoidance:        N/A 
 
Sustainability focused:    N/A 
 
ER Response:     N/A  
 
Water Quality:     N/A 
 
Quality of Life:     N/A 
 
Funding to assist private investor:  N/A 
 

Page 87 of 101



 

Agenda Item Report  
 

 
 
DATE: March 6, 2024 
FROM: Mike Elder, Facilities Director 
RE: Resolution: Approval of $300,000 in Spirit Funds for Comprehensive Space 

Needs Assessment and Facility Master Plan from the County Government 
Projects Category  

 
General Description: 
In 2023, the County completed a comprehensive facility assessment. The result was a 
list of outstanding maintenance and capital improvement. It also provided a summary of 
the life expectancy and viability of the County's buildings. An industry best practice is to 
create a master plan with that information.  
 
Action Requested: 
Motion to recommend the resolution be approved by the county board of supervisors.  
 
Procedural Steps: 
Committee of 
Jurisdiction: 

ARPA Strategy and 
Outcomes 

Meeting 
Date: March 6, 2024 

    
Action taken: __________ Vote: __________ 
    

County Board: __________ Meeting 
Date: __________ 

 
Background: 
In 2023, the County undertook a project to identify the outstanding maintenance and 
capital improvement needs of all the County buildings. The result was a listing of 
repairs and their associated opinions of probable costs. Additionally, the study identified 
where the buildings are in their useful life. Several buildings have reached the end of 
their useful life. Several more are approaching the end of their useful lives. 
Concurrently, the County has grown, missions, staffing and workplace needs have 
changed. Winnebago County has grown and changed. The way services are provided 
has evolved. 
  
The buildings that the County uses, for the most part, were designed and built at least 
20 years ago. During that time, inefficiencies and challenges associated with the 
buildings have been identified. A space needs study would evaluate what each 
department needs in way of space to conduct their operations. Inefficiencies will be 
identified, and possible solutions would be developed. Projected space needs will be 
identified and refined. 

Page 88 of 101



  
The Facility Condition Assessment provided the health of the buildings. The space 
needs study will provide the space needed to provide services. Using these two 
sources of data, a strategic plan for can be developed to meet current and future 
needs. The strategic plan would assist with the determining the priority of repairs and 
capital improvements to the buildings. Another benefit of the strategic plan will be an 
opportunity to look at how services are provided and open up opportunities for 
departments to continue the process of increasing efficiencies in providing services. 
  
The Facility Condition Assessment has identified millions of dollars (approximately 
$99,000,000 in today's dollars)  in necessary maintenance and capital repairs for the 
current buildings being used by the County. Knowing which buildings are still suitable 
for County operations will aid in ensuring limited funding is used to the best advantage. 
  
Another goal is to have the County in facilities that allow the services to be effectively 
and efficiently provided. Facilities providing services to the public should be located 
where the users can easily access them. Not all users are located in the urbanized 
areas of the County. Ideally, the facilities should be located near public transit and 
major transportation corridors. 
 
Policy Discussion: 
Over time, other departments have developed (or are in the process of developing) 
master plans. The Wittman Regional Airport, Sunnyview Expo Center, County 
Community Park, Solid Waste Management Sites, and others all have isolated master 
plans. When these plans are created, a county-wide approach is not considered.  
 
In addition to these facility master plans, departments develop planning documents. For 
example, parks has the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (CORP), Planning & 
Zoning creates the smart growth or Comprehensive Plan, Land & Water created the 
Land and Water Resource Management Plan, and other departments have other 
plans.  
 
Facilities has not created a master plan for space and use in decades. This causes 
wasted resources.  
 
Specific simple outcomes of this project would be: 

• Space standards for remodeling and rebuilds 
• Service/consitituent access and flow including building wayfinding  
• Efficiencies of county resources including equipment and people  
• Planning the next 10-15 years of county space needs and projects 

 
Staff is requesting the commission recommend the county board approve a $300,000 
budget to complete this master planning. This was determined by working with other 
counties and reviewing the costs of smaller master plans in the county.  
 

Page 89 of 101



Attachments: 
1. Facilities Condition Rating 
2. DRAFT RESOLUTION - Spirit Fund - Space Needs Assessment 2024 
 
 

Page 90 of 101



 
Figure 1 – County Building Locations 
 
 
 

 
 
This map shows the location of the County's buildings. The majority of the buildings are located in downtown Oshkosh, 
north of Oshkosh in the Coughlin Center, County Park, and Jail area and finally in the downtown Neenah area.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91 of 101



 
Figure 2 - Building Condition Rating     

Building Rating  Color Key 

Sunnyview Garage 0.32  >.30 Buildings with a rating of .30 or greater 
will require significant funding to extend 
their useful life, as a result they have 
been identified as a candidate for 
replacement 

Hangar #7 Valley Aviation 0.32   
Wittman Fire Station #9 0.31   
Workshop Storage Building 0.27   
Orrin King Building 0.25   
Material Transfer Station 0.23   
Community Park Bath House 0.23   
Expo Site BMX Clubhouse 0.2  .20-.29 Buildings in this rating are approaching 

the replacement criteria. Before major 
expenses are undertaken the buildings 
viability needs to be looked at 

Hangar #13 Basler East 0.19   
Parks Workshop/Office 0.19   
Human Services Center - Neenah 0.18   
Highway Dept Garage/Office 0.18   
Human Services Center - Oshkosh 0.16   
Hangar J 0.16   
State Street Building 0.15   
Evidence Garage 0.14  .1-.19 Buildings in this rating are in their 

midlife. Repairs and modernization 
should be performed provided the 
building still meets operational 
requirements 

Hangar #12 Basler West 0.14   
County Administration Building 0.12   
Courthouse 0.11   
Second Chance Building 0.1   
Sunnyview Landfill Facility 0.09   
Law Enforcement Center (Main Building) 0.07   
Wittman Maintenance #6 0.07  .01-.09 Buildings in this rating are relatively 

newer and in good condition.  
Facilities Bldg #1 (Includes Office) 0.06   
DNR Hangar 0.04   
County Storage - 600 Butler 0.04   
Salt Shed - Oshkosh 0.04   
Facilities Bldg #2 0.03   
Expo Site Barn E 0.03   
Expo Site Food Court 0.03   
Park View Health Center 0.03  .00-.01 Buildings in this rating are the newest 

County buildings and are the most likely 
to be meeting current operational needs. Winchester Garage/Office 0.03   

Air Traffic Control Tower 0.02   
Exposition Center 0.02   
Hangar #1 0.02   
Coughlin Center Main Building 0.02   
Expo Site Barn A+ 0.02   
Expo Site Barn B 0.01   
Hangar #16 North T C 0.01    
Exec I Hangar G I-10 0.01    
Parks Implement Shed 0.01    
Salt Shed - Winchester 0.01    
Cold Storage Building 0.01    
Facilities Bldg #3 0    
Facilities Bldg #4 (Cold Storage) 0    
Grandstand Covered Arena 0    

Page 92 of 101



Expo Site Barn A 0    
Expo Site Barn C 0    
Expo Site Barn D 0    
Hangar #17 North Td 0    
Airport Administration Building 0    
Hangar #10 North T A 0    
Hangar #11 North T B 0    
Exec Hangar I H I-10 0    
Wittman Pole Storage 0    
Crisis Center (CBRF) 0    
Salt Shed - Menasha 0    
Park View Therapy And Storage 0    
Salt Shed - Hwy 26 0     

 

Page 93 of 101



Resolution Number: 
Page 1

1 - 2024
2
3 RESOLUTION: Approving $300,000 in Spirit Funds for Comprehensive Space 
4 Needs Assessment and Facility Master Plan from the County Government Projects 
5 Category
6
7 TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

8 WHEREAS, a list of outstanding maintenance and capital improvement projects was identified in the 2023 

9 County Comprehensive Facility Condition Assessment; and

10 WHEREAS, industry best practice is to create a master plan to address facilities identified as nearing end of 

11 life expectancy and viability; and

12 WHEREAS, as Winnebago County has grown workplace needs related to staffing and mission have grown 

13 as well; and

14 WHEREAS, the Facility Condition Assessment identified the health of County buildings, and nearly 

15 $99,000,000 in necessary maintenance and capital repairs; and

16 WHEREAS, a Space Needs Assessment will help identify which buildings are suitable for continued County 

17 operations; and

18 WHEREAS, in the past, departments developed their own master plans without a consideration of a county-

19 wide approach to space needs and functionality; and

20 WHEREAS, in an effort to reduce wasted energy and resources or duplication of efforts creating a 

21 Comprehensive, county-wide Space Needs Assessment is able to identify greater opportunities for flexibility; and

22 WHEREAS, as part of the Comprehensive, county-wide Space Needs Assessment wayfinding signage 

23 inside buildings can be made consistent throughout the county; and

24 WHEREAS, the Comprehensive, county-wide Space Needs Assessment will allow the county to plan for the 

25 equipment and people needed for the next 10-15 years; and

26 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that $300,000 be 

27 allocated from the Winnebago County Spirit Fund Government Projects Category to complete a Comprehensive, 

28 county-wide Space Needs Assessment and facility Master Plan.

29

30 Respectfully submitted by:

31 ARPA STRATEGY AND OUTCOMES COMMISSION
32

33 Vote Required for Passage: 

34 Approved by the Winnebago County Executive this  day of , 2024.

35

36
37
38 Jonathan D. Doemel
39 Winnebago County Executive
40

Page 94 of 101



 

Agenda Item Report  
 

 
 
DATE: March 6, 2024 
FROM: Adam Breest, Parks Director 
RE: Resolution: Allocation of $3,900,000 in Spirit Funds from County Government 

Projects Category to Improve Outdoor Recreation in Winnebago County 
 
General Description: 
The Winnebago County Parks Department has worked with the County Executive to put 
together a Comprehensive Spirit Fund Request that will increase resiliency and provide 
more opportunities for the users of the Winnebago County Parks System.  
 
Action Requested: 
Motion to recommend to the county board of supervisors a $3,900,000 allocation to 
improve outdoor recreation in Winnebago County.  
 
Procedural Steps: 
Committee of 
Jurisdiction: 

Parks & Rec 
(presentation) 

Meeting 
Date: 02/13/2024 

 ARPA Commission  03/06/2024 
Action taken: __________ Vote: __________ 
    

County Board: __________ Meeting 
Date: __________ 

 
Background: 
Every five years, the Winnebago County Parks Department updates our five-year 
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan. This plan looks at all the capital needs for the 
next five years and beyond throughout the entire park system. The plan asks for public 
involvement in many ways including surveys, in-person public meetings, user group 
meetings, committee meetings, and staff input. The plan is generally required to apply 
for certain grants.  
 
In 2023, we hired a consultant to help lead us through this process and update our 
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan. Unique to this update, we also included an 
updated Master Plan for the Winnebago County Community Park. Public feedback was 
an important part of these plan updates. I have included the public input milestones and 
tasks below.  

• August 1 – Public Informational Meeting #1 
• August through September – Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan Public 

Survey Available to the Public – 548 Responses 

Page 95 of 101



• August 29 – Consultants, Park Staff, and the Parks Committee had a full-day 
planning meeting and walkthrough of the Community Park 

• September 18 – User Group Meeting for Community Park – Soccer Clubs, 
Rugby Clubs, Pickleball Users, Disc Golf Users, Dog Park Friends Group, 
Trail Groups, and the Oshkosh Recreation Department were all invited. 

• September 28 – User Group Meeting for Winnebago County Recreational 
Trails 

• September 28 – User Group Meeting for Winnebago County Boat Landings 
• October – Community Park Master Plan Survey Available to the Public – 290 

Responses 
• December 5 – Final Public Input Meeting Scheduled 

 
The final Community Park Master Plan and Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 
passed the Parks Committee in February and will be sent to the Winnebago County 
Board in March for final approval.  
 
The projects included in our spirit fund request are priority projects from previous 
Capital Improvement Plans or user/public-identified projects.  
 
When staff put together the requests for the Comprehensive Spirit Fund request, we 
focused on two goals and three measurable objectives for each goal. 

• GOAL #1 – Long Term Maintenance 
1. Create resiliency by addressing the cost of future maintenance.  
2. Address current maintenance issues throughout our park system that 

require one-time costs. 
3. Reduce long-term maintenance to save staff time and personnel time with 

future maintenance tasks. 
• GOAL #2 – Provide More Opportunities for Residents and Users of the Park 

System 
1. Provide open space for the residents of Winnebago County to enjoy the 

natural environment, take part in physical activity, and access the water 
system. 

2. Provide water access to as many residents in Winnebago County as 
possible. 

3. Provide more capacity for the user groups utilizing the Winnebago County 
Park System. 

The Comprehensive Spirit Fund Request includes capital investments and 
improvements for six park properties, four towns/cities, and multiple user groups. The 
list of projects is included below. Engineering costs have already been funded for the 
Waukau Dam and engineering costs will not be needed for the self-service kayak rental 
stations. 
  
PROJECT GOAL – ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

Page 96 of 101



 
 

Comprehensive Spirit Fund Request 
Waukau Dam 
Nature Preserve 

Park improvements and 
enhancements $751,815 

WIOUWASH Trail 
Paving 

Pave the trail from UW-O to 
Lake Butte des Morts Drive $500,000 

Boat Landing Self-
Service Kayak 
Rental Stations 

Install three self-service 
kayak rental stations at 
Eureka, Asylum and 
Grundman $40,000 

Winnebago 
County 
Community Park 

Replace playground #3 and 
construct new 
shelter/concession stand $1,000,000 

Winnebago 
County 
Community Park 

Build third and fourth rugby 
fields and remove south 
softball field $250,000 

Winnebago 
County 
Community Park 

Repair, till, grade, and seed 
four existing soccer fields $360,000 

Winnebago 
County 
Community Park 

Add additional soccer field 
with irrigation in soccer 
complex $250,000 

Winnebago 
County 
Community Park 

Add eight pickleball courts 
north of the existing 
basketball and tennis 
courts. $400,000 

Engineering Costs 
WIOUWASH TRAIL and 
Community Park $276,000 

TOTAL 
REQUEST   $3,827,815 

  
The Spirit Fund Requirements match our goals and objectives. I have provided 
justification below for the Spirit Fund requirements within the grant application. 

• Legacy – Many of the projects we included are larger capital projects that will 
last for multiple generations. Most of our projects are within land that Winnebago 
County has owned since the 1960s or earlier. The projects affect many users 
throughout the County and the County will continue to maintain our properties for 
many more generations. 

• One-time-funds – Most of our projects are large capital, one-time investments. 
When we add additional soccer and rugby fields, they will be there for 

Page 97 of 101



generations to come. The WIOUWASH Trail system will be used by all in the 
County and even by tourism.  

• Geographic Assortment of Funds – We are requesting projects in the Town of 
Rushford, Town of Vinland, Town of Oshkosh, and City of Oshkosh. Our goal 
was to spread out our funding as much as possible while still addressing the 
needs of the community.  

• Enhancing Funding Opportunities – The Waukau Dam has received a grant 
from the WI DNR. The Spirit Funds will allow this project to move forward. The 
Grundman Boat Landing has a new ADA Kayak Launch due to a large grant. The 
kayak rental station will enhance the use of this new launch that was provided by 
two large grants. Multiple clubs have expressed interest in funding for more 
improvements if the Spirit Funds are approved. As an example, the Rugby Club 
would like to fundraise for bleachers, lights, and more amenities to enhance the 
brand-new fields that we would be constructing.  

 
The Winnebago County Parks System is an important asset that the residents of 
Winnebago County value. They show this through the use of the facilities. The 
WIOUWASH Trail averages 10,000-20,000 users on the trail every year. The 
Winnebago County Boat Landings that have car counters average 15,000 to 25,000 
cars per year. We are turning away users at the soccer complex within the Winnebago 
County Community Park because the fields are full, or the fields need additional 
maintenance and need to be closed. The surveys indicated that many residents want to 
see the playgrounds at Community Park improved. Residents say they do not come to 
our playgrounds because they are not safe or do not have as many amenities. We only 
have two pickleball courts that are shared by both tennis and pickleball users. The 
rugby club has a waitlist for its tournaments that bring in teams from all over Wisconsin 
and even surrounding states.  
 
The Winnebago County Parks Department is also going to include Capital Improvement 
Plan requests for the parking lots at Community Park and to remodel the three other 
park shelters. This is truly a comprehensive plan that is going to change the outlook of 
the parks for the Winnebago County community for years to come. 
 
Policy Discussion: 
Our parks systems has needs beyond these dollar amounts. As such, as a way to grow 
and expand the fund, we are seeking an allocation similar to Land & Water 
Conservation.  
 
Using the costs of the projects above, we came up with a $3.9 million allocation. The 
resolution would not put shovels in the ground on the projects unless the Parks & 
Recreation Committee releases the funds after additional funding opportunities have 
been exhausted.  
 
For example, the Waukau Dam project has received nearly 50% funding (an additional 
$751,000) from a state stewardship grant. That project will be released by the 
committee.  
 

Page 98 of 101



The federal government recently released the RAISE Grant Funding Opportunity, which 
in previous years has funding bike and pedestrian paths. By using these funds as a 
match, the county can get more project and improvements.  
 
By having the allocation approved, the county can guarantee in other grant applications 
that we have matching funds available. Other funding opportunities are available 
through the federal Inflation Reduction Act, Bipartisan Infrastructure Law, and through 
the state. Having this approved allocation available over the next two fiscal years will 
allow quick and immediate application.  
 
Staff encourages the commission to pass the allocation so that we have the authority to 
apply for grants and other funding option and to get more for our dollars.  
 
Attachments: 
1. PARKS RESOLUTION - Parks Spirit Fund Allocation 
 
 

Page 99 of 101



Resolution Number: 
Page 1

1
2
3 RESOLUTION: Allocating $3,900,000 from the Spirit Fund's County Government 
4 Project to Create Resiliency, Reduce Long-Term Maintenance, Provide Additional 
5 Open Space and Water Access, and Increase Capacity and Recreational 
6 Opportunities within the Winnebago County Park System. 
7
8 TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

9 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Parks System owns and operates almost 1000 acres of park land all 

10 across Winnebago County; and

11 WHEREAS, the residents of Winnebago County utilize the Winnebago County Parks System as a way to 

12 access our natural water resource, nature preserves, regional trail systems, and the Winnebago County Community 

13 Park; and

14 WHEREAS, the Parks Department's goal is improve long term maintenance of the park system and provide 

15 more opportunities for residents and users of our park system; and

16 WHEREAS, the Parks Department proposes to make substantial improvements to over 100 acres of park 

17 land and over 3 miles of recreational trail; and

18 WHEREAS, these improvements will create resiliency, address current maintenance issues, reduce long 

19 term maintenance, expand open space, create greater access to the water, and provide more capacity to the park 

20 system; and

21 WHEREAS, the improvements are proposed to span the county to provide equal opportunities to all county 

22 residents.

23 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that $3,900,000 from 

24 the Spirit Fund's County Government Project be allocated to the Parks Department to implement the Winnebago County 

25 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (CORP) to include, but not limited to, potential projects such as the Waukau 

26 Dam Repair and Improvement Project, add self-service kayak rental stations to three boat landings, improvements of the 

27 WIOUWASH Trail, cosmetic and other improvements to parks facilities, and expand/repair soccer, softball, rugby, and 

28 pickleball facilities at the Winnebago County Community Park.

29 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that county and parks administration are authorized to apply for state, federal, 

30 private, and other funds to increase the capital authorized in this allocation.

31 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all funds shall be released upon the recommendation of the Parks Director to 

32 and approval by the Parks and Recreation Committee.

33 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the county board shall receive an annual report from the Parks Director on 

34 the status of all funds allocated under this resolution.  

35

36 Fiscal Note:  $3,827,815 will be authorized for use from the Spirit Fund.

37 Respectfully submitted by:

38 ARPA STRATEGY AND OUTCOMES COMMISSION
39 Commission Vote:  

40

41 Vote Required for Passage: Two-Thirds of Membership   

Page 100 of 101



Resolution Number: 
Page 2

42

43 Approved by the Winnebago County Executive this  day of , 2024.

44

45
46 Jonathan D. Doemel
47 Winnebago County Executive
48

49

Page 101 of 101


	A. Call to Order
	B. Public Comments
	C. Approval of Minutes
	1. February 15, 2024 Meeting Minutes
	ARPA Strategy and Outcomes Commission 02.15.2024


	D. Business Items
	1. Update: Amount of Resources Available in Each Spir
	Update on Categories
	Update on Allocations

	2. Discussion: Investment in Emergency Traffic Barrier
	Barrier Discussion AIR

	3. Investing Spirt Fund Dollars from the Government I
	 Resolution: Approving $500,000 from the Spirit Fun
	Oshkosh YMCA
	Oshkosh Community YMCA Winnebago County Spirit Fund Opportunities Application and Attachments
	DRAFT RESOLUTION - Oshkosh YMCA

	 Resolution 333-022024: Approving $350,000 from the
	Child Care AIR
	Resolution 333-022024
	CCR Application

	 Presentation: Childcare Incubator Program
	Child Care Incubator
	ADVOCAP Provided Summary
	Project Budget
	Childcare Incubator FIRST FLOOR PLAN


	4. Resolution:  Approving $_______ from the Spirit Fu
	First Five AIR
	First 5 Fox Valley Inc application
	RESOLUTION - First 5 Fox Valley
	Spirit Fund Project Funding Opportunities

	5. Discussion/Possible Action:  Request from the Spir
	YMCA Fox Cities AIR
	YMCA Fox Cities Survey Submission

	6. Presentation: Proposed Allocations of the County G
	 Resolution: Approval of $300,000 in Spirit Funds f
	Facilities AIR
	Facilities Condition Rating
	DRAFT RESOLUTION - Spirit Fund - Space Needs Assessment 2024

	 Resolution: Allocation of $3,900,000 in Spirit Fun
	Outdoor Rec AIR
	PARKS RESOLUTION - Parks Spirit Fund Allocation



	E. Next Meeting Date
	1. Set next meeting date, time, and location.

	F. Adjourn
	County Parks Spirit Fund Request.pdf
	Winnebago County Parks
	Overview of Winnebago County Parks Goals
	Process Outlined in the Resolution
	Identified Project Data
	Identified Project List
	Winnebago County �Legacy Projects��County Wide
	Waukau Dam Improvement Project
	Waukau Dam Improvement Project
	Waukau Dam Improvement Project
	WIOUWASH Trail Paving Project
	WIOUWASH Trail Paving Project
	WIOUWASH Trail Paving Project
	Boat Landings – Kayak Rental Project
	Winnebago County �Community Park �Legacy Projects��Master Plan
	Winnebago County �Community Park �Legacy Projects��Master Plan – Phase 1�Selected Projects – Big Impact
	Shelter 3 and Playground Replacement
	Remove Softball Field #2 (South Field)
	Replace Softball Field #2 with Rugby Field
	Regrade Soccer Complex �(Quad – 4 Fields)
	Add Additional Soccer Field
	Pickleball Courts
	Funding Request
	Questions?

	2024 Winnebago County Childcare Incubator Presentation.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Childcare Impact
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7




